
 

The Traverse Area District Library will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services to individuals with disabilities at 
the meeting upon at least 3 days’ notice to the Library. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should 
contact the Library Administrative Office by emailing publiccomment@tadl.org or calling 231-932-8500. 

 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

The 
May 18, 2023 

TADL Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
originally scheduled at the  
Interlochen Public Library 

 

has been RE-LOCATED to the 

McGuire Community Room 
Traverse Area District Library 

610 Woodmere Ave 
Traverse City, Michigan 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Posted:  5-12-2023 

mailto:publiccomment@tadl.org


The Traverse Area District Library will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the hearing 
impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting 
upon 3 days notice to the Library. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids should contact the Library Administration, 
610 Woodmere Ave., Traverse City, MI 49686; (231) 932-8500 (voice/fax); libadmin@tadl.org (e-mail).  

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
1. Call to Order       
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Re-appointment of Trustee Vickery Oath of Office | Policy 
4. Approval of Agenda 
5. Public Comment*  

   
6. Presentation: TADL Millage ~ Shirley Bruursema, Millage Queen 

 
7. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting of April 20, 2023  
b. Department Reports 
c. Finance and Facilities Committee Report – May 2, 2023 
d. Policy and Personnel Committee Report – no May meeting 
e. Financial Report – Narrative | Expenses| Revenues 
f. Member Library Communications – FLPL | IPL | PCL 
g. Friends of TADL Report – Donna Hornberger, President 
h. Correspondence 

8. Items Removed from the Consent Calendar 
 

9. Director Report 
 

10. New Business 
a. Smart Building Software Approval 
b. October Board Meeting – Date Change Discussion  

 
11. Public Comment* 
12. Trustee Comment 
13. Closed Session (if needed) 
14. Adjournment 

 

 

* If you wish to speak during the Public Comment section of the meeting, please (1) wait until you are 

recognized; (2) approach the podium and use the microphone; (3) state your name and the county and 
township or city in which you reside; and (4) limit your comments to 3 minutes. Please sign in at the podium.   

  

AGENDA 

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
Thursday, May 18, 2023 at 3:00pm 

McGuire Community Room 
610 Woodmere Ave., Traverse City, MI 49686 

 

mailto:libadmin@tadl.tcnet.org
mailto:libadmin@tadl.tcnet.org
mailto:libadmin@tadl.tcnet.org
mailto:libadmin@tadl.tcnet.org






 

 
Page 1 of 5 

 

    
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Call to Order 
With a quorum of trustees in attendance, the meeting was called to order by Vice President Pakieser 
at 3:05pm. Present were: Pakieser (Vice President); Sullivan (Treasurer, left at 5:00); Vickery and 
Deyo (Trustees). Odgers (President, arrived at 3:07); Wescott (Secretary, arrived at 3:09); and Jones 
(Trustee, arrived at 3:36). Also present were: Howard (Director); Morey, Baldwin, and Carpenter 
(Staff). 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
All members in attendance recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 
America.  

 
3. Approval of the Agenda 

It was MOVED by Sullivan, SUPPORTED by Deyo, to approve the agenda as presented. Motion 
CARRIED.   
 
Vice President Pakieser turned the meeting over to President Odgers upon her arrival. 
 

4. Public Comment 
President Odgers opened the floor for public comment. There was none. 

 
5. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - Regular Meeting of February 16, 2023 
                                                    -  Study Session Retreat of March 7, 2023 

b. Department Reports 
c. Finance and Facilities Committee Report – No March Meeting / April 4, 2023 
d. Policy and Personnel Committee Report – No March Meeting / April 4, 2023 

1. Revision: 3.1 Borrowing and Library Account Policy 
e. Financial Report – Narrative | Expenses | Revenues 
f. Member Library Communications – FLPL | IPL | PCL 
g. Friends of TADL Report – Donna Hornberger, President 
h. Correspondence 
 
President Odgers made a request to remove item c from the consent agenda in order to hear more 
information about the roof update reported in the Finance and Facilities minutes. 
 
It was MOVED by Vickery, SUPPORTED by Pakieser, to accept and affirm receipt of the consent 
calendar information, with the removal of item c, April 4, 2023 Finance and Facilities Committee 
Report, to expand on the roof update. Motion CARRIED. 

 
6. Items Removed from the Consent Calendar 

Deyo provided a detailed synopsis of the roof update. Trustees asked questions ranging from the 
start of the icing issues to studies and status of the various treatments of the issue to date. There 

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
MINUTES 

Thursday, April 20, 2023 at 3:00pm 
McGuire Community Room 

610 Woodmere Ave., Traverse City, MI 49686 

Thursday, January 21, 2021 at 4:00pm 
Virtual Meeting via Zoom 

 



 

 
Page 2 of 5 

 

was concern as to the length of time it is taking for a definitive answer as to how to move forward 
on the roof and the cost of the project. Howard emphasized that the important thing to date is that 
what has been done so far has eliminated the need for a cold roof and that the building is not 
sustaining anymore damage. That money has been well spent. Due to mild winters there has not 
been enough evidence yet to comfortably determine the next phase. In addition, prices for materials 
were extremely high during COVID and have since come down, which worked in TADL’s favor. Keen 
Technical Solutions is auditing the process so far and will provide the board with several options and 
a recommendation on the repair, hopefully in the Fall.  
 
It was MOVED by Vickery, SUPPORTED by Wescott to accept and affirm the receipt of the April 4, 
2023 Finance and Facilities minutes as discussed. Motion CARRIED. 

 
7. Director Report 

Howard provided the following comments: 

• Congratulations to Teen Services staff members, Linda Smith and Colleen Hatch, recipients 
of a Friend of Education Award from Delta Kappa Gamma Society for their work with the 
Teen Leadership group.  

• One protestor was present during a program for LBGTQ+ families. The protestor was 
respectful and followed TADL policy.  

• There has been a huge decrease in incidents over last year. March 2022 was the worst 
month ever with 44 incidents. This year there were 12, with only 8 requiring assistance of 
the police or suspension. Howard thanked the board for their support in hiring security 
guards. Deyo suggested writing an editorial sharing the statistics and expressing 
appreciation for the community efforts to find solutions to support the homeless population 
which resulted in reducing behavioral problems. Vickery added making an emphasis that it 
was the cooperation across community organizations that helped reduce the problems. 
President Odgers asked Howard to submit an editorial.  

• Howard has been invited to the Friends of the Library annual meeting to talk about her 
favorite book and how it influenced her life.  

• Howard thanked Baldwin, TADL’s new Finance and Human Resources Manager, for a 
fantastic job on her first TADL audit. Results from the auditors will be brought the Finance 
and Facilities Committee in June.  

Howard answered a few questions from the trustees, in particular regarding Howard’s and the 
board’s readiness for book challenges. Howard provided several articles in her written report and 
affirmed that she felt prepared and that it could be helpful for the board to do some additional 
training and practice drills if they desired. President Odgers suggested doing something sooner 
rather than wait until the 2024 retreat. It was MOVED by Wescott, SUPPORTED by Pakieser, to hold 
a future Study Session in order to provide a training opportunity and discussion. Motion CARRIED.   

 
8. Old Business  

a. Community Foundation 
It was agreed to wait for an investment advisory report from Rehmann Group regarding TADL’s 
investment strategies before committing funds to Grand Traverse Community Foundation or 
any other investment source.  
 

b. Board Retreat Survey and Next Steps 
Trustees shared their thoughts on their retreat experience and suggestions were made for 
future retreats. It was agreed that the focus should be on just one or two big picture items in 
order to have deeper discussion within the timeframe of the retreat and to build this as an on-
going approach into the structure of the board.  



 

 
Page 3 of 5 

 

 
 

c. Library Annual Review 2022 and TADL Community Survey 
The board was provided a summary review of 2022 library activity. Howard noted that although 
there were less users in the building they were using the materials and services more intensely. 
Overall visits were down but circulation was up.  
 
Per the Strategic Plan, TADL offered a public survey to find out what things people know the 
library does, how they find out about what the library has to offer, and what they come to the 
library for. Most of the 164 responses came through the newsletter survey link. Half of the 
respondents were under age 60 and half were over age 60. Overall TADL is viewed as a refuge, 
or a landing place for people and they mostly receive information through the newsletter or 
website. Vickery noted that comparative data would be helpful and suggested another similar 
survey in the summer with a different population of respondents. A second survey was already 
planned for 2024.   
 

d. Strategic Plan Update 
Howard provided a list of identified strategic plan accomplishments in 2022. Although a few 
planned items were unfinished, those have been carried over for completion in 2023. Howard is 
proud of all that has been accomplished and believes that the strategic plan is important to 
indicating how busy the library is and keeping workflow focused on a common goal. The focus of 
2023 is innovative engagement which can be leveraged for the upcoming millage and 
demonstrate how deeply ingrained the library is in the community.   
 

e. Director Review 
Pakieser noted that the Policy and Personnel Committee went over the results of the director 
evaluation survey and discussed Howard’s contract with Zeits (Counsel). It was helpful to use the 
new review process because it gave the board a better appreciation for what the Director does 
from the staff vantage point rather than relying on just their own personal experience. Vickery 
explained the effort made to change the review structure and process and the benefits of using 
it going forward. He confirmed that Howard has done a spectacular job this year and is integral 
to the many library achievements to celebrate. Pakieser noted that the new process has delayed 
Howard’s raise for 2023 and will be addressed in the proposed new contract.    
 
Howard thanked the board for the review survey feedback and thoughtful comments. She feels 
good about the goals provided by the board, in particular the strategic plan and millage request 
and emphasized that It’s an honor to be in charge, but she couldn’t do it without everyone 
working together.  
 

f. Director Contract 
Zeits (Counsel) reviewed the amendments of Howard’s contract with the Board consistent with 
those recommended by the Policy and Personnel Committee at its April meeting. Zeits worked 
with Janice Adams, TADL’s labor relations counsel, on Howard’s contract amendments. The 
amendments include: any salary increase the Board may approve for the Director following the 
Director’s annual review would be effective as of January 1 of each year; a non-discretionary 
bonus for 2023; inclusion of an Enhanced Severance Event Severance provision; and term 
amended from year to year to three (3) years and year to year thereafter. 
 
The board had a lengthy discussion to fully understand all of the amendments, including 
situations that would trigger the Enhanced Severance Event Severance provision. It was MOVED 
by Pakieser, SUPPORTED by Wescott, to approve the amendments to the director employment 



 

 
Page 4 of 5 

 

contract, subject to approval as to form by Zeits (Counsel), as discussed and presented. A roll 
call vote was taken with the following results: 
 Wescott – aye  Jones – aye  Vickery – aye 
 Deyo – nay    Pakieser – aye  Odgers – aye          Sullivan – absent 
Motion CARRIED with 5 aye, 1 nay.  
 
It was MOVED by Pakieser, SUPPORTED by Wescott, to approve a 5% increase in Howard’s salary 
for 2023. A roll call vote was taken with the following results: 
 Wescott – aye  Jones – aye  Vickery – aye 
 Deyo – aye    Pakieser – aye  Odgers – aye          Sullivan – absent 
Motion CARRIED with 6 aye.  

 
9. New Business 

a. Evergreen Management Company 
Morey, Assistant Director for Technology, explained that due to staffing challenges in IT, the 
best solution to solve the issue would be to pay for ILS hosting. Three major benefits include: 
increased sustainability of current technology and staff demand for ongoing service projects and 
commitments like the local history collection and library cards for schools; reduce issues with 
service outages to the district if there were a prolonged power outage at the main library; and it 
minimizes the risk of knowledge and service gaps through natural attrition of staff whose 
primary responsibility is ILS management.  
 
ILS management is a very niche market. Morey has compared the two companies who could 
provide TADL with satisfactory ILS hosting, and determined Equinox is the top choice for reasons 
of cost and past service relationship. The hosting cost of $24,750 is just under Howard’s 
expenditure authority, however Morey was asking the board to waive the RFP requirement due 
to the limited pool of vendors who can provide this service, and to agree to secure Equinox 
services based on the reasons discussed. It was MOVED by Deyo, SUPPORTED by Wescott to 
waive the bidding/RFP requirement for an ILS hosting proposal as discussed and proceed with 
Equinox.  Motion CARRIED.  
  

b. TADL Millage 
Howard provided a memo to the board with notes and considerations regarding the upcoming 
millage and recommended putting the millage on the ballot in February 2024 to maximize the 
window for successful passage. The request could be brought to the Finance and Facilities 
Committee and then to the board for discussion at the May meeting. Vickery, among other 
trustees, were in favor of a millage study session in May.  

 
10. Public Comment 

President Odgers opened the floor for public comment. There was none.  
 

11. Trustee Comment 
Deyo encouraged everyone to go to the Unite Against Book Bans website to learn more about book 
banning during National Library Week.  
 
Odgers inquired about a possible youth board member as discussed at the retreat and about the 
vacant board seat. Howard informed the board that she is investigating a youth member with Smith, 
Teen Services Department Head and that Vickery had just been re-appointed to the board. He will 
take his oath of office at the next meeting.  
 
Howard again thanked the board for the review process and the salary increase. 



 

 
Page 5 of 5 

 

 
12. Closed Session (if needed) 

A closed session was not needed. 
 
13. Adjournment 

With a motion to adjourn by Wescott, supported by Vickery, President Odgers adjourned the 
meeting at 5:47pm.  
 

 
Respectfully submitted,   Approved by board vote on May 18, 2023 

 
 
 

V. Carpenter, Recording Secretary  P. Deyo, Board Secretary 
 
 
 



Departmental Reports 
for the month of April 

(May 18, 2023 Board Meeting) 

Adult Services 
● The 25th annual Poets’ Night Out event happened on Sunday, April 23rd. Almost 100 

people enjoyed the live poetry reading event and the selected poets were thrilled to be 
able to share their writing with the crowd. And for all those who won prizes, the night was 
even better! Many thanks for continued support go to our PNO Prize donors - Horizon 
Books, Tina Tank, Jody Clark, Paul Stebelton/Landmark Books, and the Sonneman 
Family - as well as to all those who volunteer and help us with the event. We’re already 
looking forward to next year! 

● Tax Season 2023 is over! TADL provided boxes and boxes of forms and instruction 
booklets for both state and federal taxes and when they ran out, printed out over 400 
more forms for patrons. 

● A book group based in Manistee was having their 40th anniversary and chose to have 
that meeting here at the Woodmere Library on April 19th. They asked for a tour of the 
library, so Melissa showed them around our lovely facility. They were so impressed with 
everything that TADL has to offer. 

● Partnership Highlights (Purposeful Partnerships): 
○ A Nurse from Munson Medical Center presented 2 programs on Advanced Care 

Planning this month to a total of 11 people in person, and 3 online, plus 35 views 
of the video so far. 

○ Melissa presented in a SCORE workshop about the business databases 
available through TADL on April 20th. 

○ Melissa represented the library at an event with local author and artist Lois 
Beardslee at The Dennos Museum on April 13th. 

○ Melissa & Librarian Katheyrn Carrier presented on Genealogy and Local History 
Resources at TADL at the monthly Grand Traverse Area Genealogical Society 
meeting on April 27th. There were about a dozen people in attendance, 5 on 
Zoom, and 13 views of the video so far. 

○ 20 people joined us for Coffee with a Cop on Saturday, April 8th. Many thanks to 
Cuppa Joe for providing the coffee and to Jennifer Campbell, MSW with TCPD, 
and the two TCPD officers for providing the company and conversation. 

○ We partnered with Linda Solem from Up North Prevention to host an information 
session about Human Trafficking presented by members of the Michigan State 
Police on April 25th. 

○ Grand Traverse Audubon Club hosted a bird walk at the Commons for 15 TADL 
patrons willing to get up at 7:30am on Sunday, April 23rd. 

● In April, the following programs were held (in addition to those listed above): 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3sBVItgAqBY&t=23s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3sBVItgAqBY&t=23s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Y-P2Y68QshE
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Y-P2Y68QshE


○ 60 people learned about Gardening Basics on April 2nd. 
○ We were grateful to be joined by two authors for programs this month - Shelley 

Shepard Gray, NYT bestselling author of more than 100 books, on April 20th and 
Jacob Wheeler, who talked about his book Angel of the Garbage Dump, on April 
26th. 

○ Tai Chi met twice with 7 total attendees. 
○ Books & Brewskis met at Silver Spruce Brewery this month on April 24. A 

probably-record-breaking 23 people attended to discuss Magic Lessons by Alice 
Hoffman. (Innovative Engagement) 

○ Queer Tales met in person this month and had 3 attendees discuss Other Names 
for Love by Taymour Soomro. (Inclusive Space) 

○ TADL Stitchers met four times in-person with a total attendance of 17. 
● April Adult Services Statistics: 

○ Questions Answered In-Person - 1550 
○ Questions answered via Phone - 565 
○ Questions Answered via Email/Chat - 102 
○ Notary Signatures - 20 
○ Proctored Exams - 2 
○ Craft Kits Distributed - 51 (Needle Felting Animals) 
○ Volunteer Hours - 10.5 

Local History Collection 
● Robin created a spring/gardening themed display of LHC 

items for the case on the 2nd floor. 
● Robin and Melissa created a Preservation Week post that will 

remain on the Local History website permanently. It contains 
lots of good information to help people know how to handle 
their precious items at home. 

● Robin and Melissa continue to help plan for the upcoming 
TADL-Woodmere 25th anniversary display. There is quite a bit 
of materials in the LHC about the millage, and construction of 
the Woodmere Library. We look forward to sharing it with the community soon! 

● Mary Morgan, the local history librarian at Peninsula Community Library visited the 
library and got a brief tour of the LHC space. 

● We worked with the Friendly Garden Club to help them try to identify women in a photo 
from the 40s. 

● Reference staff answered at least 16 local history questions over the course of the 
month. (This was the first month we began tracking these queries separately, so I’m sure 
we missed a few. We’ll be more accurate as time goes on.) 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Melissa McKenna 
Head of Adult Services 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=n-UEm0SDQGo
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=n-UEm0SDQGo
https://catalog.tadl.org/main/search?query=shelley+shepard+gray
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=kvfG7_SaBWw
https://client.catalog.tadl.org/eg/opac/record/48443592
https://catalog.tadl.org/main/details?id=48289990
https://catalog.tadl.org/main/details?id=48426296
https://catalog.tadl.org/main/details?id=48426296
https://www.tadl.org/preservationweek2023


Youth Services 
Youth Services moved back into some semblance of normality after March which included 
TCAPS 1st grade visits and Spring Break Week. April was a month full of regular storytimes and 
afterschool programs, but included our annual, signature MakerFest program at the end of 
month at the Grand Traverse Civic Center. 

● Early Literacy programs: 19 
○ Down 9.5% from 21 in 2022 

● Early Literacy program attendance: 259 
○ Down 15.1% in 2022 

● Program attendance: 1,068 
○ Down 0% from 1,069 in 2022 

● Program counts: 19 
● Reference questions: 827 

○ down 43% from 2022 (due in part to the abundance of 1st graders’ questions 
during their visits) 

● Reference - phone questions: 85 
● Reference - digital questions: 4 



TADL’s MakerFest was another huge success for the library and 
our community this year. Twenty-five different educational 
organizations, businesses, departments, and branches 
participated in this year’s festivities at the Civic Center grounds, 
including spaces in the Amphitheatre, Pavilion, and children’s play 
area (nearest the pavilion). There was a wide variety of activities 
for families both young and old. 

● Continuing organizational partnerships: 4-H/MSU Extension, Challenge Island NW MI, 
Cherryland Ghostbusters, The Dennos Museum, Grand Traverse Conservation District, 
The Great Lakes Children’s Museum, Inland Seas Education Association, MiSTEM 
Network, Newton’s Road, TADL - Teen Services, TADL - Youth Services (3 stations), and 
the Traverse City Preschool Cooperative. 

● New organizational partnerships: Art and Connection (Elk Rapids), Cherryland Amateur 
Radio, Discovery Center & Pier, TADL - East Bay, Young Eagles (Traverse City Airport) 

● Food donated by Oryana Community Co-op (for exhibitors): Plenty of delicious 
sandwiches, chips, cookies and seltzer 

● Food Truck: The Good Bowl’s Good on Wheels 
● Total TADL Staff: 7 
● Total TADL Volunteers: 22 
● Total attendees: approximately 500 

This event does not happen each year without the help of friends and organizations in the 
STEAM/Maker Alliance, including our friends at Newton’s Road. We were saddened by the 
recent news that Newton’s Road is moving to an all-volunteer employment, as TADL staff have 
developed strong relationships with employees there. We wish them the best as they hopefully 
continue their work in STEM education. 

https://newtonsroad.org/lets-partner/steam-maker-alliance/


Andy Schuck 
Head of Youth Services 

Circulation 
April was an amazing month for circulation! We welcomed 1,731 new patrons to the library; a lot 
of that was due to the wonderful work that our Technology team did with new cards for students 
at TCAPS. These cards have been really magical for the students, and we have noticed that 
parents will often come in with the students to get cards for the rest of the family! 

In merchandise news, we have sold all of the upcycled library totes. Patrons really loved the 
care that went into the creation of these bags. Thanks very much to Heather Brady for making 
these possible. We are also very excited about some of the new items we have received for sale 
- more on those in the next board report! 

Kate Parvel continues to provide excellent service as a notary, with 12 requests filled this month. 

I’m excited by the continued increase in our MeLCat requests, and I hope to see this trend 
continue throughout the year. 

I have had such a wonderful time in the Introduction to Tai Chi program here at Woodmere that I 
jumped at the opportunity to have this program at our East Bay branch. Matt, Chantel, Jody, and 
all the East Bay patrons who attended were amazing! 

April Circulation Numbers 
New patron accounts created: 1731 (vs 195 last year) 
Curbside pickups for April 2023: 17 
Notary Public Service requests filled: 12 
Circulation Statistics for MeLCat, April 2023: 

● TADL items sent to borrowing institutions: 1310 (vs 1278 last year) 
● TADL items received from lending institutions: 1929 (vs 1666 last year) 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Josh Denby 

Marketing and Communications 
Summer might seem a long way off but we’re putting the 
finishing touches on our groovy plans for the 2023 Summer 
Library Challenge! I’m looking forward to seeing the response 
to this year’s theme, and all the collaborative aspects - not to 
mention it touches on all our Strategic Plan elements 
(Inclusive Space, Innovative Engagement, Targeted 
Outreach, Purposeful Partnerships). The swirls in the summer 
logo are colored to match the books on the side of the 



bookmobile. 

This portion of the year is the busiest part of the marketing calendar, with Poets’ Night Out, 
MakerFest, and summer prep all packed in. As of the last day of April we have all the major 
summer materials in hand and ready for the school visits that will happen in May. In addition, the 
library card mailing to TCAPS students who have joined the district since our last mailing in 
June, 2021 arrived in homes. (Targeted Outreach, Purposeful Partnerships) 

A few interesting items to mention: the calendar on the new website is very popular, the month 
calendar and upcoming events are both top 10 pages. Additionally, the new website worked 
more smoothly with Google - now more of our events show up on Google than ever before. 
(Targeted Outreach) I’ve also continued making short videos to help explain library services - on 
tadl.org/videos and our YouTube channel. (Inclusive Space, Innovative Engagement) 

Website Page views Page views: 45,485 

Users: 12,526 

https://tadl.org/videos


Heather Brady 
Marketing & Communications Manager 

Human Resources 
The following is a summary of employment changes for the month of April ‘23. 

New Employees for April: 

Erica Pfriem 
PT Page, Youth Services 

Employee Departures for April: 
Marilyn Metiva, Page, Youth Services (Retirement) 

In an effort to report on more HR data, I present to you the following graphs using available data 
from our HRIS software. 

At TADL, we always have our fair 
share of employees who leave our 
employment, whether to enjoy 
retirement, continue their education, 
or for other reasons. In 2021, 
companies in the U.S. had a 
staggering average turnover rate of 
47.2% - as well known through media 
reports calling it the “Great 
Resignation.” TADL experienced an 
uptick in employee separations in 
2021 and 2022 as well, with turnover 
rates at 19% and 26% respectively. 
Between 10 and 20% of our employee 

separations were retirements during these two years. As of 4/30/23, we have had 6 separations 
in 2023 of which 3 have been retirements. 



Segueing from retirements, this graph 
represents our workforce and the 
length of time employees have been 
employed by TADL. Employees with a 
tenure of 20 or more years represent 
25% of our workforce. These 
employees are instrumental in TADL’s 
success. Every day, they bring 
important institutional knowledge to 
assist patrons and other staff. 

Happy Spring! 
Danielle Baldwin 
Finance and Human Resources Manager 

Facilities 
● New electric drop for 3D printer outside Tech Center installed 
● All exterior window cleaning completed 
● “Banned Books” posters hung in staff hallway 
● Continued research for exterior drinking fountain 
● Obtained additional quotes for Building Control upgrade 
● Repaired exterior Bicycle Repair Station pump 
● Installed shelving for Ref Health Kits 
● Installed new Youth Services bathroom “indicator” handle 
● Obtained quotes for upgraded East Bay electrical wiring 
● Researched tree condition for ongoing Lawn Project 
● Leak in Sight & Sound floorboard heating repaired 
● Book Bike tuned up, researched e-bike upgrade 
● Reviewed East Bay lease 
● Replaced worn U.S. and TADL Flags on flagpole 
● Building review with Insurance Adjuster 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Bret R Boulter, Facilities Manager 

TADL Talking Book Library 
The National Library Service will now have Braille eReaders for patrons. I have attended two 
training sessions and will have one more in May. 

The Visually Impaired Person Support group held a training session on the phone app Seein AI. 
We had 5 people attend. 



Notary requested filled-15 

This month, the Tuesday @ Two book group read “Mrs. Lincoln’s Dressmaker” by Jennifer 
Chiaverini. 

Anita Chouinard 
Talking Book Library Manager 

East Bay Branch Library 
● April is National Poetry Month, and Chantel 

challenged patrons to write a haiku in our entryway. 
We ended with quite a few creative poems on our 
wall. 

● Many thanks to Josh Denby from the Circulation 
department for hosting a session of Tai Chi with our 
patrons here at East Bay. Josh was very well 
received, and all the attendees enjoyed themselves 
and said we should do this again. 

● In an effort to provide programming for some of our 
younger school-aged patrons, we hosted a Tween 
Time event, with many different activities for 
pre-teens. We plan to host more of these. 

● To celebrate Earth Day, we had patrons decorate terra cotta pots and plant seeds (from 
our seed library!) in them. This was a very successful program, and we had some very 
happy patrons! 

● Matt and Chantel had a great time encouraging young gardeners and botanists at the 
TADL Makerfest. 

● Matt had the opportunity to encourage local 4th and 5th grade readers as a judge in the 
National Writers Series’ Battle of the Books. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Matt Archibald 
East Bay Branch Manager 

Kingsley Branch Library 
I typically use this space to talk about past events, but I would rather call the Board’s attention to 
the upcoming excitement at Kingsley Branch Library! We hope to see all of you at the Kingsley 
Adams Fly Fest, our largest annual program hosted by the Kingsley Friends of the Library! The 
Fest is also a fundraiser for the Friends, and all proceeds are for the benefit of KBL. Without 
their steadfast support, we could not do nearly as much programming as we do! 



We will see you on Saturday, June 3rd, from 
12:00pm to 6:00pm, rain or shine. If you’ve not 
been to the Adams Fly Fest before, we have 
vendors and educational visitors discussing all 
things fly fishing and preserving our natural 
resources, live and silent auctions, live music, a 
beer tent, and local food and food trucks. Your 
favorite librarians will also take you on guided 
history tours at 1:30pm and 3:00pm to Mayfield 
Pond Park, where the Fly was created, tested, and 
perfected. 

Additionally, our staff has developed a wonderful 
working relationship with the Kingsley Farmer’s 
Market staff. This year, we’re collaborating with 
them to bring children’s programming every week 
at the Wednesday market from 3:00-5:00pm 
(Purposeful Partnerships, Targeted Outreach)! Our 
activities and stories will feature the theme of the 
Market that week (for example, seeds, soil, birds, 
dairy, and other food and ecology topics). It’s going 

to be a wonderful time and a great partnership, so we hope to see you every Wednesday 
starting June 7th. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Amy Barritt 
Kingsley Branch Manager 





















































 MAY 2023 DIRECTOR’S REPORT - VICTORIA SHURLY 

 

In case you didn’t catch it, Peninsula Community Library is listed in the credits of the television show, In 
With the Old, in the segment that highlights the restoration of the Carter and Amy Oosterhouse barn.  
Our local history librarian Mary Morgan and I assisted with the historical research!   
 
The Friends of Peninsula Library have donated new playground certified climbing boulders for the 
Children’s Garden, an Epson scanner for historical documents that is capable of scanning old negatives 
and a mobile cart to store items from our Library of Things. We are so very grateful to this hardworking 
group for their never-ending  support of PCL! 
 
We have contracted with Top Line Electric in Traverse City to replace the defective smart lighting 
system.  The new system is wireless and can be controlled by staff from each panel.  The system to be 
installed has been used successfully by TCAPS for eight years with no issues.  
 
The summer concert series has been scheduled with music variations from contemporary to sixties 
music to jazz and bluegrass to songs we all know and love.  We invite families to bring a picnic and enjoy.  
The full schedule will be on our website soon. 
 
We are once again collaborating with U of M’s Michigan Medicine on a lecture series with world 
renowned physicians.  This year’s programs will include presentations on cardio health, diabetes and 
skin cancer.  Programs will happen in July, August and October.  This is a big deal for a small library.  U of 
M is redoing the fabulous promotional video they produced last year, highlighting a “small library and a 
global institution!”  The programs will be recorded for people who are not able to attend.  Following 
each program, we will offer fireside chats so that attendees can ask one on one questions of the 
physicians.   
 
A walking path will be mowed around our five and a half acres this summer.  It was a part of our special 
use permit and our hope is to develop this further in coming years. 
 
 

PCL Fun Fact:  The retention pond on our property has formed its own “ecosystem” which is attracting 
birds, dragonflies and lilies.  An Eagle Scout project resulted in nesting boxes to attract indigenous birds. 

 
Circulation April 2023: 1988 + 61 manual checkouts, April 2022: 2339 

April Volunteers: 12 people (1 teens), 34 hours of time to PCL.   

Curbside pickups: 1.  Home delivery:  2.   New library cards:  15 

Hold Transit Counts April: 591 to other libraries from PCL, 316 from other libraries to PCL  

Programs April: 23 Programs    Participation April: 380    Reference Questions:  423 

Website Hits: 1158, Twilight Baby Bags: 0, 1000 Books Before Kindergarten: 2 
State of Michigan COVID Kit Distribution: 2100, COVID card protectors: 800  

 
 

PENINSULA COMMUNITY LIBRARY 2893 ISLAND VIEW ROAD, TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49686231-223-7700   
www.peninsulacommunitylibrary.org 



 

610 Woodmere Ave.  •  Traverse City, MI 49686  •  tadl.org/friends 

 
 

To: TADL Board 

May 2023 

The FTADL Annual Meeting was held in person in the Maguire Room on Wednesday, May 10, 

at 5:30 p.m.  The business meeting was a recap of what we have done since the last Annual 

Meeting, a description of the June book sale which will be the first week end in June, and an 

election of 6 board members and as well as officers.  

Jud Barclay was elected President for the May 2023-May 2024 term. Other officers who were 

elected were Margaret Monsour as Vice President, Marika BeVier as Secretary, and Megan 

Holtrey as Treasurer. Board members who were elected for May 2023-May 2025 were Meagan 

Belden, Marika BeVier, Kathy Kelto, Margaret Monsour, Kerri Moses, and Pam Ward. 

The speakers at  the Annual Meeting were Michele Howard, Benjamin Marentette, and Christal 

Frost Anderson,  speaking about books that impacted their lives.  

We were delighted that so many people attended the meeting and enjoyed the program and food. 

We have created a Sign-Up Genius form for people to volunteer for the book sale and slots are 

filling up. 

Reba Leiding reported that she had filled out an on-line form to apply for a grant from 

Michigan’s Nonprofit Relief Fund, to make up for our losses due to COVID.  

At our June board meeting, board members will look at committee assignments and decide 

which ones they wish to be on.  

Donna S. Hornberger                                                                                                                                                    

President 

 


























	Re-schedule Bd Mtg Notice 2023-05-18
	2023-05-18 Regular Board Meeting Agenda Pack_AC
	2023-05-18 Regular Board Meeting Agenda for web
	1.3 Oath of Office for Trustees Policy 2021-10-21 - signed_AC
	Bruursema bio for 2023-05-18_AC
	2023-04-20 Regular Board Meeting Minutes - ABM and KZ Redlines_AC
	Departmental Reports for the Board 2023-05-18_AC
	Finance & Facilities Committee 2023-05-02 Minutes and Supporting Docs_AC
	Structure Bookmarks
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure


	PCL Director Report 2023-05-18_AC
	Friends Report May 2023_AC
	Director Report for the Board 2023-05-18_AC
	Memo - Building Control System 2023-05-18_AC


